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Jury Called; All

TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 1912; 10 A.M.

P. J. COO N E Y,

Defendant in court with counsel.

present. Case resumed.

on the stand for further direct examination:

23 ,as 1 could to assist me in that work and to report to Mr. Franl

'>4 ~in.
! t .......

25 P. And did he specify any of the men that you were to ge or

2G ~id he leave that to you?
I
1
!

ls 1

2

3

4 I

5

/6
!

MR. FREDERICKS. Q Coming back to the time--to

I 7 when Mr. Darrow directed you to go and report to Mr. Franklin

I 8 for work in regard to the jury, you tes tified to, 1 wish
I ..

\\9 Iyou would state, Mr Cooney, in sUbstance, if you can, just

~I what Mr. Darrow said to you.

I111MB. ROGERS. Wasn't that matter all gone into?
I

121MR. FREDERICKS. 1 looked it over here; it is only covered
I

13 !bY a line. 1 t was not gone into.
i

141THE COURT. All r~ght; answer the:questiono
I

15 lIAR • ROGERS. our same objection, .your Honor.
I

16 ITHE COURT· Objection overruled. '--"""

(

17 A . He explained to me, as 1 think 1 stated yesterday, that ~>~~

18 these men were hostile. .

19 IMR • FREDERICKS. Q. You understand the question? This is
i

20 IWhat Mr. Darrow said to you. Just read the ques tion ~gain.

21 i(Last question read by the reporter.)

Why, he told me to get as wany of the "men in our office --



vereation.
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MR. ROGERS. pardon m just a moment--that you were to get or\

that you did get?

MR. FREDERICKS, 1 said, that you were to get.

MR. ROGERS. 1 think if that conversation is to be given it

should be given as a conversation and not its conclusion

or the opinion of the witnese ae to what was meant by it.

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 think so too, your Honor.

THE COURT. All right.

MR. FREDERICKS. That is alII want him to state, the con-

1

2

t
3

4

r 5
~
I

f 6
tr 7i

~
I 8
;

9

10

over there and 1 did find him and we went over

questions.

Croes-examine •

yes, he specified one man, that was ~. Fitzpatrick-­

Keene Fitzpatrick--told me to find him if I could and ~~1

1

14

15 1 MR. FREDERICKS.

16 ! l.ffi. ROGERS. No

171

a witnese called or-behalf of the proeecution, being firet

duly sworn, testified as followe:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

18

19

20

21

22

K E ENE

BY MR. FREDERICKS.

FIT Z PAT RIC K,

Q What ie your name? A Keene

Where do you live, }.C.r. Fitzpatrick? A 1 live at

23 years.A

Q

Fi tzpatrick •
23

24

25 I Ocean Park at present.

26 ! Q How old are you?

I
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Q What is your business?1

2 an inves tigator.

What are you doing? A 1 am

At present 1 am a salesffian for the

California Produc t Company.

Q What were you doing prior to that? A 1 was direc tor

1 did not.Did you Bee Mr. Lockweod at that time? A

case.

Q In what capacity? A As an investigator.

Q You know Mr. Cooney? A Yes, sir.

Q You know Mr. Franklin? A Yes, sir.

Q Bert Franklin? A Yes,sir.

Q State whether or net you were ever at the house of Mr.~

up to the time of the termination of the case--the

Lockwood in Walnut Center out towards Baldwin's Ranch? i
. i"

A yes, 1 visi ~ed M:. Lockwood f S house wi th Mr. Franklin ----t;l
early in November, 1911. . 1\

t - I:
Q What time of the day or nig~t '7 A It was around 9 0 clo .

Q Day or night? A Night.

Q

23 I
I

24 I
I

25 I
26 1

I

18 I.

5 of the Violet Street Playgrounds for the city.

6 Q Which city? A Los Angeles.

7 Q Prior to that what were you employed at? A 1 was

8 salesman for the Los Angeles Furni ture Company.

9 f Q You acquainted wi th Mr. Darrow? A Yes, sir.

10 I Q FoW long have you known him? A 1 have known him inti-

11 \ mately for--since about the latter part of August, 1911.

12 j/ Q Wer e you ever in his employ? A Yes, sir.

13' Q When? A 1 wae employed in the latter pert of Auguet -:,,"k~
14

15 I
I
I

16 1

19 '
I

20

21

22\

17

[
i,
t
t
I.
I.



1 Q Wh8.t did Mr. Franklin do at that time?

1491

A After. we
(

2 located Mr. Lockwcodts house in Walnut Center, Mr. Franklin__'!!

3 / went to the door and had Sonte diseuse ion With Mr. Lockwood~.~

4 I 1 didn't overhear it.

5 Q Were you in hearing? A No, sir.

6

7
I

8\
91

I
10

11
I12 .

13

14 I
I

15 I
16 I

I

17
1

18 I

19

20

21

22

231
241

I
I

25 I

26 I
I

I
I
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2P 1 Q Now, on the 25th, on the evening of the 25th of llov-

2 ember, 1911, state whether or not ~TOU SaYi I.:r Franklin?

3 A I don't remember about the exact date, whether I saw

4 Ur Franklin on that evening or not. I saw Mr E'ranklin

5 several times the latter part of November.

6 Q All right. I will put it in another way:

7\ or not you ever were in an automobile driving out to Compton,

8 Artesia and Downey with Mr Cooney?

9 MIt ROGE'2S: That is objected to as leading, if your Honor

10 please. I am not very particular

11 THE COlB T: Yes, I think • +- •
~ '" ~s.

12 1.2 :B~T:ET)rRIC:KS: I do not think that is leading, your Honor.

13 If I would ask that in any other v-:ay he ·would. have to recite

14 everything he has done in the last six months in order to

15 bring it in. I didn't ask him the time, I said: "Wore you

16 ever in an automobile with Cooney at any time from the

THE COURT.
No, I did notl I think it is harmles3, at

l\

5th of lTovelllber.

20 .'IR FREDERICKS:

19

21 ny rate.

2212 FR:S"DE"RICKS: Has the Court ruled?

17 eginning of the world to the present time?"

18 He has put the ~~rds in his mouth by s~ing the

A Sunday morning.

Answer the question.

\fuat dSW of the week ~~s that?

I was with fur Cooney.

FR~D~ICKS: I beg your pardon.

23 HE COunT: Yes. There was no formal ob jection.
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Now, state whether or not you saw Mr Franklin on the

Do you remember what day of the month it was?

I am not sure, I think it was the 26th.

1 Q

A

3 Q

4 Q

Of what "month? A november, 1911.

~"

5 evening -- or saw Mr Franklin before that at any time, the

6 daY before that?

7 11R ROGERS: We object to that as incompetent, irrelevant,

8 immaterial; no foundation laid, not within the issues.

9 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

10 I.1? ROG3?S: Exception.

13 :Building.

I saw rur Franklin the night before.

A Nr Cooney, I think there waS

A In his office in the Chamber of Commerce

Who was present?

VVhere?

I
Did you have a conversation with him at that time? ----~·I~.:..

Yes, I did. .

11 . A

12 Q

151" A

16 Q

14 Q

17
I

somebody else present, I don t remember.

18 THE COURT: rur Williams, can you hear what is being said?

19 JUROR 'i7ILLIA:;',~S: Yes sir.

20 THE BOUPT: Can you, Yr :Blakesley?

21 JUROR :BLAKESLEY: Ye s sir.

22 TH3 COUP.T: Any juror that cannot hear speak up.

23 JURO~ BLAKESLEY: This seat ought to be a Ii ttle higher.

24 TilE COURT: Mr Sheriff, ~ill you attend to that during the

25 noon hour. Mr Blakesley requests that the seat be rais

All right.a little.26
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By Mr Fredericks; How, what was the conversation1 Q

2 had with Mr Franklin on the Saturday evening, the 25th of

3 November?

4 VrR roGERS:,; We object to that as irrelevant, incompetent and

5 immaterial, no foundation laid; not within the issues.

6 THE COURT: Objecti on overruled.

7 18 ROGERS: Exception.

8; A~tr Franklin told me that he had already given the

9 orders to TJr Cooney and r.:1r Cooney wonld direct me as to

10 what was to be done in regard to interviewing certa in

II! jurors~J He told me another matter, about a certain party

12 that was to be held that evening in honor of his daughter

13 Q By Mr Fredericks: We do not care about that, simply

14 in regard to jurors; give all the conversation in regard to

15 anything that might be in relation to jurors.

f
16' A That was about all there was to it. He told me hef

f;
: . had already given the or ders to Mr Cooney, and he wonld tell~. 17/ .

18 me what was to be done in regard to the matter.

19: Q Now, on the Sunday, the 26th da~T of november, state

20 ~hat you did and who was with you?

21

A An autmmobile ar-

rived at our residence about 6 o'clock in the morning, and
~.. :-",,-... ,.....--'

22 in corm!any wi th !.:r Cooney and the chauffeur -- .-
23 !liR ~OG:sRS: I do not wish to interpose an objection contin-

24 ually, I wonld like to have the same objection I last

25 stated to this general subject.

t think ~hen counsel is taking an. objection to ar.'IR FO?D:26



1

2

3

line of questioniJilg at the beginning of it it is not neces-

sary for the Court to rule on all of it.

THE COURT: There is some doubt about~hat in the absence of
i

4 I a sti~ulation. I think, if there is a stipulation, and the

5 Court concurs in it, I think a man is safe. It is so stipu~

6 lated?

7 WZ FRE:-:ERICKS: Yes sir.

8 THE COUnT: And the Court so concurs in this stipulation.

9 MR ROGERS: It will be understood as to this witness?

10 THE COU~T: Yes, it will be understood as to this witness

11 that there is the same objection, the same ruling and ex­

12 ception to all of this line of testimony, without its being

13 objected to.

14 MR FORD: The courts have ruled hundreds of times, even

15 ~ithout a stipulation, if it is objected to once or twice
I

16 1 you do not need it.

17 THE CO~'"RT: Yes, I knoVo'.

A The automobile

By Mr :i!'rederi cks : :Now, go ahead, r:,~r Fitzpatrick,18' Q

19 tell everything you did that day?

20 at our residence about 6 o'clock that Sundew morning and

21 com~any with Mr Cooney and the chauffeur we viffited the

22 towns of Artesi.a, Compton, Downey, and there we nalled up

23 I certa.in prospective jurors v;hich had been, the nameS of whom

24 1 ' had been given to 1.!r Cooney by !lir Fran klin the preceding

25 evening,

2G
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38 11

2

3

4'

and wh ile Mr. Cooney called these men or their near neigh- --"1"',
. !

bors on the 'phone 1 steed by distracting any parties that1~"

might be listening to his conversation.

Q Did you hear what Cooney said? A 1 did; some places

5 1 heard him and other places 1 did not.

6;/ Q Well, down at Compton, did you hear what he said to Mr.

on the 'phone or no t.

7

8

Elliott? A 1 don't remember whether he got YJ. Elliott

The substance of his conversation,

9 was--

10 MR • ROGERS. Just a moment--l think that question should

be yes or no, do you remember •

THE COURT· Yes, 1 think so. Answer yes or no.

13 A 1 don 1 t remember •.

MR • FREDERICKS. Q. We 11, do you remember the subs tance

A Mr. Cooney told whoever this

A Yes.

Q Relate it.

of it?

got on this 'phone that he was

juror in the McNamara case and' if he wished to

that he better not be at home on that day when the

would be likely to be served.

Q Had you ever worked under Mr. Franklin before that day?--U

A yes, sir.

Q And were you working under his orders regularly? . A

a part of the time 1 was. -t,
14R.APPEL. Wait a moment. We object upon the ground as '

calling for the conclusion or opinion of the witness and

24 _I
I

25 I

26 !
I

14

15
1

16~r
17

I
18

19

20/

21

22

23'
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1 calling forrfacts; incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial,

2 hearsay and no foundation laid.

3 THE COURT. Objection overruled.

Franklin's office to the other office in the Hlggins Build-

during the early part of November and 1 alternated from Mr.

The office

A Mr. Darrow, I

Fronl which office did you draw your pay? A

ing the latter par t of November.

),ffi. APPEL· 'We eli cept.

Q Who was in charge of that office?

41
5 'I I!R. ffiEDERICKS.Q What par t of the time and what time wer e '

61 youworking under Mr. Franklin'. order.? . A During the mont I
7// of November, 1 believe, 1 worked steady for Mr. Franklin ...=:',

8J
'I

91
I

10;1

11 /r Q

12 'I in the Higgins BUilding.

13

14 MR. FREDERI CKS • That is all.

15

16 CROSS-EXAMINATION.

17 BY 1~. ROGERS. Q When you went cut to Locnlood's house

18 you say you went With Mr. Franklin in the automobile?

19 A Yes, sir.

A His Wife and daughter and chauffeur.

His Wife and daughter? A Yes, sir.

You went out to see the road race first, didn't you?

No, afterwards.

Afterwards, are you sure about that, Mr. Fitzpatriok?

Q Anyone else?

Q

Q22

20

21

23 A

24 Q
25 A It was our intention to see the road raoe after Mr.

26! Franklin had visi ted Mr. Lookwood.

I
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1 Q You mean the Phoenix race? A Los Angeles-to-Phoenix

2 automobile race, yes, sir.

3 Q That went· out the Whittier road? A ~ believe so, yes,

4! sir.

5 Q And did you go over to th~race after you were out there

6 at LockWood's? A Yes, sir.

7 Q Where did y.ou pick up Mr. Franklin that evening or where

8 did he pick up you? A 1 met him infront of the Chamber of

9 Coremerce Building, 1 believe, about 7 o'clock.

10 Q Where did you go from there? A Well, we went directly

11 to Walnut Center as best we could. We had a hard time

12 100 a ting the house.

13 Q And you made some inquiries around ~mong the neighbors

calling your attention to the night that has been referred

there, did you? A Yes, sir.

Q Well, you went out and spoke to possibly three or four

people residing around that country and inquir ed where Mr

Lockwocd 1 s house was '1 A Yes, sir.

Now,Q And Mrs. Franklin~and Miss Franklin were along?

house .~-e spoke of a party and invited us.

to here, one evening when you say you had a conversation

With Mr. Franklin in Mr. Cooney's presence, you started to I

say something about lith Franklin saying that he could not go I
i

wi th you or that he had sorre other engagement. Mr. Franklin I
had a party at his house that night, didn't he? A 1 don't I
remember whether it was at Mr. Franklin's house or another

14
I

15 I
I

16
1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
I

251
2G I

I
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-

1 Q .nvited you to go? A Yes, and Mr. Cooney.

2 Q You did not go? A No, sir j 1 don't believe we went.

3 Q Can't youremember? A 1 don,t remember whether we went

4' or not.

5 Q What time was this conversation between yourself and Mr.

6 Cooney and Mr. Franklin on this evening? A About 7 or

7 7:30.

8 Q You don't remen~er whether you went to some kind of a

9 function or party afterwards? A 1 don, t think we did go.

10 Q You don't know where you did go, as a matter of f.act?

11 I A No, sir.

12 Q Did you see Franklin again that night? A 1 don't rem-

13 em"Qer that we saw him.

14 taR. ROGERS. That is all.

15

16 I

17

18

19 I
i

20 I
21 .

22

23

24

251
26 I

I,

-------



-1' 1 THE COURT: We viill suspend formal proceedings for a few

2 minutes while we are waiting.

3 (Recess was here taken for 5 minutes. After recoss.

4 ' Jury returned into cOllrt-room.)

5

6

as follows:

on behalf of the People, being first duly sworn, testified

BY JI::R F~EDERICKS:

Just state whether or not you

A Compton.

Banker.A

A E E Elliott.

E EEL L I 0 T T, a witness called

A Yes sir.

DIRECT EXAT'IlJATIOU

is your business?

Wha t is your name?

~nere do you live, ~r Elliott?

What

Compton.

This County?

IThat is your first name?

A

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

7

8

9

l 10
.r
f 11
t
t,

I 12

i 13

I 14
I

15'1
I

",

16 '1
17 I
18 I

! I

19 I

Q And What day of the week was it you werp served?

,A Sunday, I believe.
24' l. Q' illiat time in the day?
25

/
\
I if I remember correctly.

26 i
I

!

A I think Sunday evening t

served, I was subpoenaed as a juror.

ember, 1911?

23

20

21

22
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1 Q. How, in order to fix that date, state whether or not

2 you reported in court in pursuance of that summons? A I di •

3 Q And do you remember what day of the week it Vias you

4 ' came to court': A I think it was on Tuesday, the followin

A I think it was after-

Ans'wer the question.

A Yes.

Objection overruled .

lie except.

Yes sir.

Q That is, you saw it in the paper afterwards; is that wha·

in pursuance 0 f thi S slU:m:ons, what v;as the time when yo u

Tuesday.

A I think I read it in the papers at the time.

Q. 71ith reference to the time when you appeared in court

thi sease.

had any conversation in wnich the Darrow case was mentioned

or not you were called up on the telephone by any

noticed the arrest of Franklin?

lin at any time on the charge of having bribed Juror Lockwoo ~

Q Do you remember of hearing of the arrest of Bert Frank-

wards, if I remember correctly.

you mean?

irrelevant ana immaterial, hearsay; no foundation laid, not

binding upon the defendant, not tending to prove any issue 0 f
i

:r.m FTI3DEJ.ICK3:

.;), ~:ov;, on the Sunday when you were served, state

22

2

2

L

3

1

II "JT..,:.'E COU?T:
..;. AFP3L:

251
9G,1 A
- I

I

20

21

18' - or the l:cUamara case was mentioned?

19 MR APPE~: We object to that on the [;rcnnl it is incompetent

5

6

7

I
8

9

t 10
t

11t
f 12

I
,
r

I 13 I
t
~. 14

15)

16 1

17

t
~-

I
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A Sunday morning.StmdtV morning?

Relate to the .iury what that telephone conversation

And at what timo of the day ViaS thi s telephone ca.ll? __

I think it was between 8 and 9 otclock in the morning.~~~2

3, /Q

4.Q

5r"'in substance.

6 1m A?~E1: We object to that as incom~ tent, irrelevant and

a juryman I had better ee~~

"i't
and S1. bstance 0 f the con':'''1\;

I

case, and collateral thereto; no foundation laid.

THE CCURT:Answer the question.

immaterial; hearsay, no foundation laid, not tending in any

versation.

MR APIEL: Exception.

way. shape or manner. to prove any of the issues of this

THE COURT: Ob ject.i on overruled.

and if I did not wish to serve as

that I had been subpoenaed as a juryman in the McNamara cas •

out of the way. That ~~s the sum

A I was informed by somebody Viho said they were my frieri

7

8

9

~ 10I

r 11,
~ 12

t 13.! It

I 14

I15

16

17

l' 18, Q Over the telephone? A Yes sir.
f;
>,

19 FREDERICKS:t I:IR That is all.
i
t 20 Tat ROGBTIG: That is aL 1.

21 I'.L F?ED'CTtIC}:S: That is all. Mr Elliott.

Sm 22

t 23

24

25

~ 2G
[
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58 1 MR. FORD. Hasyour Honor made a rule that wi tnesses should

2 be excluded from the court room?

3 THE COURT. There has been no rule.

4 MR. FORD. That is my recollection. You ask for it?

5 THE COURT. It has not been asked for and has not been

6 made, to the best of my recollection, at this time.

7 W. FREDERICKS. We are perfectly willing to have it made.

8 MR. FORD. We ask that it do be made.

21 without n~ing any witnesses, we ask that the rule be en­

22 forced wi th the .exception of the newspaper men.

23, THE COURT. Are there any witnesses in this court at this

your Honor. We ask that the

It will be necessary, under

We make an exception to the newspaper men, but

(Disr:ussion)

MR • ROGERS. It is usually made and 1 thought it had been

made.

exclusion of the witnesses

not aware there was any such rule.

nesses.

THE COURT. 1 am opposed to the enforcement of such a rule

on general principles, but if it is requested 1 will adhere

to the r eques t.

MR. FORD. 1 had noticed witnesses in the rUQID but 1 was

MR. FORD· There will come a time when we will ask for the

time under subpoena by either side, if there are stand up.

order be made at this time for the exclusion of the wit-

application made, that witnesses be excluded. MT. Sheriff,

One witness is present.25 ,
I

26 !
I

I

20 },ffi. FORD.

11

12

13

14

15 i
161

I
17 1

I
18

19

I
t
r

!
I
I



1504

I
Bal tiIDor1

!

At theA

Whereabouts is that

A Yes, sir.

A. DIE K ELM A N,

In Los Angeles.

K U R T

A

At the Baltimore Hotel?Q

Q Here in the city of Los Angeles-

Hotel.

Q Where were you working at that time?

Q Where?

DIRECT EXAMINATlON

BY MR. FREDERICKS. Q What is your name "1 A kurt

A. Diekelman.

Q Where do you live, Mr. Diekelman? A In Sa n Fran-

cisco.

a witness called onbehalf of the prosecution, being

first duly sworn, testified as.follows.

have you a place for the accommodation of the witnesses?

The sher iff wi 11 show you a room in wh ich you may wai t.

This general order excluding witnesses at this time does

not include the representatives of the newspapers who are

engaged in the performance of their professional work in

the court room.

23

24 1

251
26 I

I
I

21

2
.--Q' Do you remen:ber the time when the Los Angeles Times was

2....
destroyed? A Yes, sir.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

r
8

9 I,
I

r 10
I

f
f 11
f,
i 12

~ 13r
r 14
t, II 15

Ii 16 I

f 17

I 18 I

I
r

I

19.
r 20r
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hotel? A Fifth and Los Angeles.

Q And what was your business there at that time? A 1

was chief clerk, had charge of the office.

Q At that tiffie state whether or not you met a man here in

~os Angeles giving the name of J. B. Brice at your hotel,

whom you afterwards identified as J. B. McNamara'?

JiR. APPEL. Jus t a momen t--we object to tha t upon the

ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial fo

any purpose whatsoever in this case.

MR. FORD. Preliminary to ~aying the foundation.

THE COURT. One at a time. ~. Appel, you have the floor.

:MR • APPEL. That it is incompetent, irrelevant and ill'lIr.a-

~rial to prove any issue inthis case; that it is hearsay,

no foundation 1aid and upon the further grourxl that the

question is leading and suggestive; that it assumes two

names of the s arne person,. a3sumes" that the witness did

recognize or identify the person in question at some other

time.

THE COURT. The objection is overruled.

MR. APPEL· We except.

A You want me to state the full particulars?

YR. FREDERICKS. Just read the question.

(Last question read by the reporter.)

A yes, sir.

Q And where did you see this man, J. B. McNamara, after

the time when you saw him down inthe hotel as J. B. Brice



after you had seen J. B •

QState' whether or not you
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1 A When 1 --

2 THE COURT. Wai t a moment.

3 Am • APPEL. We obj ect to that uponthe ground that it is

4 incompetent, irrelevant and irr~aterial for any purpose

5 whatsoever in this case; hearsay; doesn't tend to prove

6 any issue in this case and no foundation laid.

7 THE COURT· Objection overruled.

8 MR • APPEL' We excep t.

9 A The next time 1 saw him down at the city prison or county

10 jail 1 guess it was.

l/YR. FREDERICKS. County jail.

12 1 informed the district attorney

13 McNamara over in the county jail that he was the samenan

14 whom you hadseen on the nigh t or on the day previous to the

15-/~ Times explosion at the Hotel Bal timore here in Los Angeles?

16

17

18

19

20

21

MR. APFEL. Wait a moment--we object to that upon the ground

that it calls for hearsay; incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial for any purpose Whatsoever; no foundation laid;

not binding upon the defendant.

THE COURT. Objec tion or erruled.

l4R • APPEL. Exception.

22 ~ A Why, 1 identified him almost as positively as 1 could.

)ffi • APPEL. 1 submit, your Honor, he is not answer ing the

question. The question is very leading and suggestive and
23 I

241
251

I
2" Iu;

I
I

calls for yes or no.

THE COURT. 1 think it i6.
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1 MR. FREDERICKS. I think the wzness's answer, however,

2 is a comprehensive answer to the question, if your Honor

3 will notice it, it should stand as it is.

4 THE COURT. Read the answer.

5 (Answer read by the reporter.)

6 A under tte circumstances.

7 MR. APPEL. 1 move to strike out the answer of the Wi tnes6

8 as not responsive to the question. We still insist that

9 the question is not a proper question and object on all of

10 the grounds of the objection heretofore made.

11 THE COURT. Motion to strike out denied.

12 MR. APPEL. Exception.

13

14

15 I

16\
17

18 I

19 I
20

21

22

23

24 !
I

25 !
I

2G I
I
I
I

!
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6-3 1 MR FREl):Sr-UEKS: Were you informed - - state whether or not

2 you were informed by the District Attorney that you would be

3 needed as a witness for the People in the prosecution of the

4 ,State against the case of the People against McNamara, wherei

5 he was charged wi th murder in blowing up The Times?

6 I~ APPEL: Wait a moment. We object upon the ground that it

7 is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial; hearsay, and no

8 foundation laid; leading and suggestive, and upon the further

9 ground that the defendant is not bound in any way, shape or

10 manner by the conversat ion~\had between the Di strict Attorney

t 11 and anyone else, not in the presence of the defendant, im-

I 12 Irna terial for any purIJose.

f 13 THE COurtT: I think the question m s the thouGht of being

f 14 leading, but harmless under the circumstances. Objection

I 15 overruled.

16 MR A~)PEL: ><:xception.

17 A Yes sir s.

18 MR FrEDERICKS: How, Mr Diekelman, how long did you. remain
~-

19 at the -- I withdrav;·that. About what time was it, if you.

20 remember, that you saw J B McN(,lmara over in the county jail?

go? A Vfuy, I was

I think it was some-

1911.A

I don't gu i te remember the date.

In what year?

22 time in April.

21 A

25 lout to Arrowhead Hot Springs, and when the seaSon was

26 'I came to Los Angeles; then I r.ent out for the Harvey

I

Q23- ------_ .. -.- --.........

24 Q And after that time rohere did you

r

I
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1 to'--

A no sir,

A I came to Los Angeles,And then ~here did you go?

And how long did you stay at Arrowhead after that?

Why, it was a little over a month.

4 I jail?

5 Q

6 A

7 Q

8 Q Did you work an~fhere here- in Los Angeles?

9 I did not.

2 Q Let's just get your movements in a general way. ro'here

3 were you working at the time you saw McNamara in the county

A I was at Arrowhead Hot Springs.

10 Q Then where did you go? A Then I signed up with the

11 Harvey System to go to Needles, Cal ifornia.

State whether or not you kept the District Attorney
tIadvised as to ""here you were and where you were going when

Q12

13

14 1 you left?

15 MR APPEL:

A Yes sir, I did.

We object to that.

16 THE COURT: Strike out the answer for the purpose of the

17 objection.

20

21

22

23

18 1B APPEL: We object to that upon the ground that it is in­

19 I competent, irrelevant and imma terial for any purpose; it is

'hearSay, not binding upon the defendant; no foundation laid; I
doesn't tend to prove any issue in the case; it is leading I

and suggestive, conversations between the witness -- communi~
I

cation between the witness and the district attorney are im- I

24 I material for any purpose ""hatsoever.

251WE COURT: Overruled.

26 II:iR APPEL: Exception.
I
I
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1 TIm COURT: Restore the answer.

2 1ffi FREDERICKS: Do. you remember the date when you WBnt to

3 work out at the Needles?

Pete 4 I Q You can look it up.

5 you can look it up?
I

JUly.6 sometime in

A No, but I can look it up.

Have you any data here by which

A No, I have not. I think it was

Q July? A lto, June.

Q June or July, 1911? A June or July, 1911.

Q Then where did you go from there? A I Vias over

A How

I had charge of the Fashion Cafe up there as head

How long did you stay there in Albuquerque?

18 A

7

81
I

9 1
i
I

10 there two days and they transferred me to their house at

11 Williams, Arizona, as clerk at that house.

12 I Q How long did you remain there as clerk at the house at 1;1
13 Williams, Arizona? A I just stayed there a month vf
14 I Q Then Where did you go? A I went up to AlhUq:erque, I
15 I :new Hexico, awai ting to be changed to another house.

16 I Q Albuquerque, New ~exico? A Yes.

17 Q ~7ha t were you do ing in Albuq uerque, Hew Mexico?

21 long?

19 waiter.

20 Q

t
I
I

Now, calling your attention to the occasion of your

22 Q

23 Q

Yes. A I was there about a month and a half.

24 leaving Albuquerque and the time and the circumstances

25 surrounding your leaving Albuquerque, I will ask you if you,

261 at about that time, met a man there by the nane of Bert

I
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1 HalI4"TIerstrom? A Yes sil:.

2 Q How long before you left Albuquerque did you me'et Mr

3 Hammerstrom?'

4 I 1m APPEL: We object to that upon the ground it is incompe-

5 tent, irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose; it is hear­

6 say, no t binding upon the defendant; no foundat ion laid.

7 THE COURT: Read the question.

8 ( Quest ion read)

9 THE COUPT: Overruled.

of I

I
I
I
I

A The 16th of September.

A J.911.,

The 16th of what month?

Vlhat year?Q

MR APPEL: We tmte an exception.

A I-m§t him o~ the 16th, three days before I left

the grounds stated in our last objection.

TIre CO~T: Objection overruled.

A We went to Chicago.

Q Dow, then, I want to go back to the time when you

I,m AIrEL: We except.

I,m ATPEL: We make the same objection, upon each and all

10

11

12 Albuquerque.

13 Q

14

15 ~ .. Had you ever seen Ii:lr Hammerstrom before you met him

16 I there?

17 I 1.18. APPEL: Wai t a moment

I A I h'18 never saw 1m.

Q By llir Fredericks; ITOT., when you left Albuquerque, at

the time you speak of, where did you go?

1

f

I
I

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 I

f 26
I

I i
I



.512

1 first met Mr Hammerstrom. State the circumstances of your

2 first meeting with r~r Hammerstrom.

3 1m APPEL: We object to that as incompetent, irrelevant and

4 1 immaterial; hearsay, and no foundation laid; not tending to

5 prove any issue in this case; not binding upon the defend-

6 ant. It is collateral to'any issue in this case.

7 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

8 1m APPEL: We except.

9 A Why, one ~orning at qbout 11 o'clock, JUdge Craig
I

10 MR FREDERICKS: Just a moment, Ur Diekelman, don t say

11 I anything that Judge Craig said to you, or anything that

12 anybody else said to you, except ~r Hammerstrom.

I 13

14
I

15 1

I
16 I

17

18

19

20

21

22

23\
24 I

25\
I

26 !

I
!,

A You want the actual meeting1

18 FR~D~ICKS: Yes.

I
'I
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MR. APPEL. Then, your Honor, the question as propounded

state the circumstances surrounding the meeting of Hammer-

Now, the district

He asked him towas the question your Honor allowed.

s trom, that would call for everything.

attention to the time when you rret ~M. Hammerstrom there,

s tate what was said and done be tween you and Mr. Hammers trom

MR. APPEL. We object to that question on the ground it

calls for the conversation or for acts and declarations

of the wi tness and a third party not inthe presence of the

defendant~ therefore, it is hearsay, not binding upon

attorney instructs the witness not to answer the question.

MR. FREDERICKS. 1 did it out of fairness to the defendant.
ed

MR. APPEL. We object/to the question as propounded and

we do not Wish to be disarmed as to the point we make,

because we think it is absolutely good.

THE COURT. 1 deem the question Withdrawn and it will have

to be reframed, under the instruction given to the witness

that amounts to a wittdrawal of the question.

MR. FREDERICKS. Simply out of fairness to the defense,

sirrply that he should not state what somebody else said.

THE COUR T. Better reframe the question.

MR. FORD. 1 think the Witness is correct, only tte diS­

trict attorney oautioned the witness not to say anything

that was hearsay.

THE COURT· The Court has passed upon this matter, Mr. Ford.

BY MR. FREDERICKS. Q Now, Mr. Diekelman, calling your

7p 1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 I

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 !

26 I
I
I



1514

figuring on that very shortly and so he asked ~e how woul

on their si de of the case, that 1 was really their wi tness,

and if 1 had not been SUbpoenaed yet that 1 would never be

called by the State, because 1 was not their witness and 1

defendant and no foundation laid for the introduction of th

eVidence, onthe ground it is incompetent; irrelevant and

irr~aterial for any purpose whatsoever, and it is collateral

to the case, and does not tend in the slightest degree to

prove any issue of this case.

So 1 told him 1 didntt

1 sakd I was probably

So he told me that 1 was practically

going to Chicago very soon."

San Francisco. "

was not favorable to the State.

know about that, 1 tOld him 1 promised to appear there and

promised Mr. Fredericks 1 would be there and they said they

wanted me, and he asked me if 1 had been SUbpoenaed and 1

said No at the time, and he said, "Well, they will never

call you then." So 1 said, "1 will have to wai t and see",

and he says, "1 understand from your folks that you intend

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

JAR. APPEL· Take an exception.

A 1 met Mr. Hammerstron, and. he started to open the con­

versation, that he had been looking for me for sometime, and

he says, "We have looked allover the country for you and
I

it seerrs the district attorney has tried to keep you ~ay

from us and we have had a hard time to locate you and we

finally got.word where you was through your mother up in

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

I 10

·11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
t 22

23

24

25 I

261
I
I
1
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1 1 like to take a trip with him and 1 said it would be all

2 right, but 1 would not care to at the present time. So he

3 started to tell me, he says, "Now, we have found out that

4 you have not positively identified this man d01Yn there",

5 and he says, "you would riot send an innocent man to the

6 gallows, if there was any chance of saving him?" And he

7

8

9

10

says, "We aretrying our best efforts to save this man, he

is perfectly innocent", and everything like that, and he

says, "Don't you think it would be right for you to conside

the least doubt there is and consider that and be on our

side?" And 1 told him 1 didn't think there was any doubt,

in a viay, 1 said, of course t~~~e waEJ . ~_ s ligh.t <i9}l'bt, very

slight--so he asked me to consider the thing. He says, v
14 "NoV!, you ar e a very valuable witness for us "and he says,

15 "Of course we cannot do like the people can ~i th all of the

16 witnesses, g~Jl.~I1Lf_ifte.en__.C>.rtwepty- thousand dollars",

17 "but", he saya, "you are valuable to us, yolX services are

18

19

20

21

22

23

26

valuable to us and Whatever your price is we will give it
------------------_. --'-.- .-._----------
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0-1' 1 So I told him I had no price.

2 and he asked me to consider the things over. and promised me

3 several good'~ositions in Chicago if I would make the trip

4 I with him, and I told him I didn I t think I would consicler

5 any Ilositions if I did. if I ,...,.ent with him. I would get a

6 posi tion of my own. So then he asked me if I knew Rector's

7 Restaurant in Chicago. I said "Yes lT
• He said "Well. I thin·

8 lJr Darrow is interest~d_j..Jl.. that"t and he says, "How \'ro:o.ld
-~~ ..- ~-_ •.. _-_.--- -~.-- .._-_.

9 you like to be Assistant Manager in there"? I said, "It

10 would be pretty nice t but". I says~, IT I don I t think I could

11 hold it. i t is too big a job for me." He says. "Well t -..:;e

consiner Boing with him to Chicago, if I had any objection

couple of weeks, and I says. "You can go to Chicago, and if

I find I am not wanted. I can come on your side. then. if

can fix that all right." I said, "I don't think I v:ould

30 he asked me if I ViO uld not like to

I told him I would like to have him wait a

care to try it."

to going.

12 I

13
1

14 I

151
I
I

16 I
17

18 I am favorable to your side." He says. "Well, it is a

In the meantime. I had put them off.clecicle on 'i t.

matter we are in a big hurry. I am up here to see you. and

I rmve to get through with you. and as soon as you can give I~

me an answer I want to come and go ~ith you, I have to go tol
I

Chicago and come back to Los Angeles on important busi- I
ness and we are delayed at the present time. 7.e a~o awfully I

I
rushed and crowded." So I toli him I would not consider I

anythins at that time, I would wait a v;-hile l)():orc I

23

24 I
25 I

I2G I

I
[
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1 ing word from the District Attorney --
'1517

2 1m ROGErS: We move to strike out that last portion, that is

3 not a conversation.

4 I THE COu'RT: Strike out the Viords "expecting 'word from the

5 District Attorney".

6 A Oh,

7 1ill EOGERS: I have no doubt the witness does not understand

8 the rules of eVidence, and naturally, he ","ould not know he

9 ~as not answering the question.

10 TIill COURT: Yes. Just confine your answer to the convorsa-

11

12

tion you had there.

I
I

A So I had no further conversation ~ith him that day, to

13 my knowledge. l'robal)ly there was some little items I cannot

14 recall just now.

This took place in liller and JUdge Craig's office in

By Nr Fredericks;I
15 I Q

I16\ A

17 Albuquerque.

l'n16re did this conv ersat ion occur?

18 Q And ~ho was present? A Just Er Hammerstrom and my-

19 self.

20 Q

21 A

Mr Fofd just coughed then -- (Answer reael).

Mr Hammerstrom and myself --

22

23

Q ~~at name did Mr Hammerstrom give you when he first
there,

cam£i as his name?

24 liE APPEL: We ob ject to that ss incompetent, irrelevant and

25 iwmater'ial, hearsay, no foundation laid; collateral to any

9~ issue in this case. It does not tend to prove any element
-0
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foundation has been laid. It hasn't been shown that the

Q Vlliat was said and done between you at that time?

the question of the District Attorney on tLe ground no

A Yes.

A I met him

A fIhy, he told

It is leading and suggestive, and

A At his room.

A No, we had hardly any conversation then.

All right. You went up to his room, then?

No~, did you meet him again after that?

How did you come to 80 to his room?

Where?

Q

the next day.

A He gave me the name as 1~ Higgins.

Q Now, you had some conversation together there at h~

versation. Upon the further ground that it is hearsay for

to prove any elements of the offense charge~ar~.!~1

of the offense charged in the indictrr.ent here, or any

element, or the remotest element connected therewith, not

binding u~on·the defendant.

THE COURT: Objection overruled.

~m FREjERICKS: Answer the question.

it is incompetent, irrelevant and irr~aterial; doesn!t

defendant was there present or had any notice of the con-

at the room. We object to any conversation called for by

Q

Q.

UE .FORD: It is stirulated that objection ia P-lade.

Q

me to let him know whether I decided on going with him or

not, and I decided I would not go, and I went up a{noon

right after lunch and told him that I --

any purpose whatsoever

room?

1ffi lli'PEL: Wait a moment. We object to any conversation

1

2

3/
4i

5

Sm 6

7

8

9

10

111
I

12

13

14

15 I
I

I
16

I
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1 ment, nor the renotest element thereof.

2 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

3

4'

5

6

7

81
I

9 1

10

13

14 I

15 !
I

16 I

17

18

19

20

21

22

.23

24
I

25 I

26 I
I
I
I



THE COURT • The jury are admonished that the statement of

the district attorney is stricken out and they are entirelY!

to disregard it. I

20

21

22
23 l4R. FREDERICKS· When you consider om evidence has been

will be disregarded.

introduced in sUbstantiating the fact--

THE COffiT. The statement as made is out of the record and
24

25 I

2G I
I
I
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1 MR • FREDERICKS. Now, Mr. Diekel nan, relate just what was

2 said between youand Mr. Hammerstrom at this time when you

3 went up to his room.

4 I MR. APPEL. We will again have to repeat the same objection,

5 the question was pending, of course.

6 THE COURT· 1 will withdraw this last question and have it

7 read.

8 MR • FREDERICKS. The be tter way was to have the ques tion

have time 1 will cone up," so 1 left then. That is the

says, "Well, can 1 t you drop up this evening then and see me

1 says--he

1 said, "Well, 1 will think it over, and if 1

I
1 move to strike out the anewer of the witness I

please •

only conversation we had.

(Last question read by the reporter as indicated.)

A At that time 1 went up and told him that 1 had decided
if

not to do anything for several days, and/he wanted to wait

that length of time, why, all right, and so he said, "Well,

can't you stay a little while and have a little talk?" 1

a while? "

read, 1no doubt about that. 1 withdraw the question and

ask the reporter to read the first question.

MR. APrEL·

on the ground it was said in such a low tone of voice it

was not brought home to the defendant. He didn't hear it a1d

1 didn t t he ar it.

THE COURT. Mr. Reporter, did you get the answer? Read

said, "No, 1 am in a hurry to get back."

9 1

10 I
I

11\
.12

13

14\
I "' ivI
16 .

17
I

18 I

19 1

20 I
1

21

22

23 1

I
24 I

I
25 I

I
26

1
I

I
i
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1 (tas tanswer read by the reporter.)

2 THE COURT. Motion to stike out is ·denied.

3 MR • FREDERICKS. Q Now, when did you see Mr. Hammers troD'!

4 I Egain? A 1 am not posi tive whether 1 saw him that night

5 or the following night; 1 think it was--

6 I Q 1F.ell, was it one or the other, ei ther that nig ht or the

7 f allowing night"/ A 1 think it was the following ni~t,

8 Monday nigh t •

91 Q All right. And where did you see him then "/
!

10 his room.

11 Q Who was present? A Mr. J. W• Bibby.

I Q Who is Mr. Bibby? A Why, he told me was--12 I

13 Q Who told you? A Mr. Bibby.

A Up at

Did Mr~ Hammerstrom say anything to

14 MR. APPEL. 'We object to any more as hearsay.

151ft. FREDERICKS. Jbst a moment--l will get'at that.

16 Q "hen did ycufirst meet Mr. Bibby? A That night for the

17 first time.

18 I Q That the first time.

19 I youabout who Mr- Bibbywas?

no foundation laid, irrelevant and immaterial for any pur-

pose Whatsoever and no foundation laid.

20

21

22

MIt. Appel. We object to that onthe ground it is hearsay and
i
I
I

23 THE COUR T. Objection overruled.

24 I :uR. APPEL· Exception.
I

25 I A No, he didn't tell me who he was at all.

2G! told me later himself.

Mr. Bibby



1 MR. FREDER IOKS •

"j 523

Werwill not ask you what M~ Bibby said

2 at present, when Mr. Bibby told you who he was and what he

3 'was there for at this conversation or at a later one.

4 I A Atalater one.

5 Q Very well. Now, relate the conversation.

6 MR • APPEL' I suppose we have no r.ght her e, your Honor.

7 THE COURT' Yes, you have, you will be accorded all the

8 1 right you have when you wish to object.

91 MR. APPEL' We said, "Wait a moment."

10 THE COURT. If you say you are objecting, Why, you will

11 always be accorded a clear field for your 0 bj ection •

12 I MR. APPEL. I know, bttt the district attorney would not

13 stop.

14 THE COURT. If you wi 11 jus t state your objection--

15 I
16 I

17

18

MR. APPEL' 1 can't make it while he" is asking one question

after another. I said, ttWait a minute".

THE COURT. 1 assume that is equivalant to an objection.

You want the answer stricken out?

19 !IE • APPEL. Why, two ques tions one after the other, they

20
I

21

22

23

24

were both answered.
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once.

because it is not covered by the objection to the conversa-

(y,aa t two questions and

We ask counsel to refrain fromtion of Hammerstrom.

MR. APPEL. May 1 object now?

THE COURT. Yes.

The Court~ Read them over now.

answers read by the reporter.)

MR. ROGERS.' Your Honor can see that is the substance of

the conversation and a separate conversatioryand entirely

different, and we desire to have objection interposed to it

MR • APPEL· 1 will accept your Honor t a suggestion and here­

after 1 will start in With, "1 object-.

THE COURT. If you do so the court will endeavor to see

you get a clear field.

MR • FREDERICKS. 1 w'ould say 1 would have paused if 1

thought counsel wanted to go any further. The impression 1

got was that he said "lfai t a moment", and then reconsidered

and didn't want to object any further, and 1 drove on.

MR. APPEL. We ask that the answer of the wi tness be

out for the purpose of allOWing me an opportunity to

THE COURT. Strike it out for the purpose of the objection.

MR. APPEL. We object to the qUeationraked to the w~tnea

asking another one until we object to that ~

THE COURT. You are quite right, but strictly speaking it i

your duty to say you object and notdemand that counsel wai t
.;-

a minute. If you object that gives you the field at

s 1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

141
!

15
1

16 I
I

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 I

24
,

2- Ibl

26 !
I

I



in reference to begging me to join thar aide and to con­

sider the doubt, if alight doubt there was, and said "You

will never be called by the state." He said that "they

out.

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

MR. APPEL. We except.

A Now, I recall this conversation was Sunday night when

Mr. Hammerstrom and Mr. Bibby were there.

)ffi ~ FREDERICKS' What day of the month would that be?

A The 17 th of Sep tember, 1911, 80 it was pr actica11y the

aame conversation that we had before when he first met me

·'i52~
concerning what transpired between bim and Mr. Bibby on th~.1

ground that the question assumes a state of facts not testi

fied to by the witness and upon the further ground--

m. FREDERICKS. We are willing that it should be stricken

THE COrnT. All right, strike it out.

1m. FREDERICKS. Q Now, Mr. Diekelman, relate the convera~ n

which you had wi th Mr. Hammerstrom at the time you have

related you and Mr. Harrmerstrom and Mr. Bibby being present 0

l4R • APPEL. We 0 bject upon the ground ths.t it is incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial and it is hearsay and no founda­

tion laid. It doesn't tend to prove any element of the

offense charged nor prove any notice to the defendant of any

conversation or knowledge of the conversations and the

oofendant not being present and not being bound by what Tom,

Dick and Harry said, inreference to the case.
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1 would have subpoenaed you long ago."

2 },ffi • APPEL. 1 object to the wi tness talking so low we

3 cannot understand what he says.

4 MR. FREDERICKS. Tl're acous tics in the room are very poor.

5 1 think 1 can hear what he said.

6 THE COURT. The def_endant is some seven or eight feet fur-

7 ther away. Speak up, Mr. Diekelman.

8 MR. FREDERICKS. Go onfrom where you were, let the reporter

9 read the. answ(\r •

10 THE COURT. Read the answer.

11 (Las t answer read by the reporter.)

12 A So 1 told him that 1 w'ou1d rather wait a few days and

13 then if he wanted me, and he said the State don't want me,

14 "why,you go on to Chicago and 1 will come on. 1 will drop

15 you a line and if you want 1 will come on later." He said,

16 "Wel1~ he couldn't think of doing that', he said "my

17 mission is to see you and Mr. narrow sent me to see you and

18 1 got to get back to Chicago as soon as 1 could. 1 got

19 my business ther e and 1 thought 1 would just s top off and

20 get you on my way~ so 1 told him 1 didn't think about

21 going at that time, so he started to tell me, says, ltJiell,

22

23

24

25

26

now, if you decide on going, n he said, "we will make

things very good for you in Chicago, and if you want to go

to work there, if you don t t wan t to go to work, why, we
a week

will pay you $30.00/every week until you are through With

the tr ial, and your exp enses. He says, "Now,
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1 then he started to ask me why 1 ',ould not leave wi th him

2 a t this time, so 1 told him that the firs t excuse 1 told

3 him--

4 MR • ROGERS. Now, your Honor pleas e, he is des ignating

5 what it Was.

6 THE COUR T. State the conversation or the substance of it.

7 A First 1 told him that 1 didn't want to leave on account

8 of being'hard for my boss to get a man in my place at that

9 time. He said, "Why, we can fix that easy; 1 will get one

10 0 f the Harvey men; 1 wi 11 pay 'them to come over her e and

11 take your place," so 1 told him 1 rather give him time to

12 get his own man, so then he--so he kept asking me again, he

13 said, "Well, is that your only reason for not going? 11 He

14 says, "Probably you have got a ~irl here that you don 1 t want

15 to leave." 1 says, "No, not exactly." He says, "Well,"

16 he says, "we can fix that very easy, if you have any girl

17 here that you want to--don,t wantt:> leave, we just arrange

18 we take her right along With you." So 1 said it would be

19 very nice, all right, and very accommodating of you, so

20 1 told ltim 1 thought 1 would consider it at the time.

21 "Well," he says, "1 will tell you what 1 will do, if you

22 don 1 t think every thing is all right 1 wi 11 advance you

23 expense money, give you about $100.00, that will pay your

24 way back from Los Angeles to Chicago, but if yougo to

25 Chicago with me and we find things not just exactly right,

26 why, yougot the expense money you can get right onthe tr
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1 and come back to Los Angeles whenever youwant to~ so 1

2 told him 1 didnft know what 1 would do. 1 told him 1

3 would ra ther wait a day or so. "Well, " he says, "let me

4 know tomorrow sure what you will dO," so that practically

5 ended the conversation that night, and so the following

6 day, why, 1 didn f t see him again until 1 received a wire

7 from the district attorney and so 1 took this wire up there

8 and showed him, he says, "Well, that is jus t a bluff, to

9 scare you not to go with us." He said, "They dassentt

10 stop you from going wi th us, they know better than that, th

11 are jus t bluffing you so you wont go with us." So 1 told

12 him of cour se 1 didn 1 t know or say that night. He said,

13 "Well, if you think you are going to go", he said, "1 will

14 leave the money here With Mr. Bibby." Firs t he wanted me

15 to go. Hersaid, "We Will get a drawing room tonight and

16 we will all go to Chicago," so 1 says no 1 wouldn't do

17 that. 1 said, "If 1 go 1 want to go by myself," so he

18 said, "1 will leave the money With Mr. Bibby, and relying

19 on you to go tomorrow then;" so 1 said, "1 would think it

20 over if I would 1 \"ould be up and see ~,lr. Bibby the following

21 day." So the next day, why, Mr. Hammerstrom 1 guess left

22 that night, 1 don 1 t know, the next day--

23
MR. ROGERS. He said Mr. Hammerstrom left that night, 1

24 guess.

26 MR. FREDERICKS. Go ahead.

25 THE COURT. Str ike it out •
A Want the conversation w'
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1 Mr. Bibby?

2 Jm • FREDERICKS. Wai t a minute.

3 A 1 forgot-to mention inthe conversation there he also

4 stated about he knew 1 had been in the restaurant business

5 and said, "You would like to go. into the restaurant business

6 when you get to Chicago we have always got a string of rest

7 rants on hand, we can put J"'Ou in one of thea e places,"

8 he said, "we will fix you up as nice a place as you have got

/

9 in Albuquerque, If the place 1 had char ge of. He said, Iff{ e

10 are inter.ested in a lot of places all the time." He said,

11 "The Federation Labor there we always got a string of resta

12 ranta." He said, "We can put you in one of them, if you

13 don't want to go to work at something else. It That about

14 concluded the conversation with Mr. Hammerstrom at that time.

15 Q Who introduced you to Mr. Bibby? A Mr. Hammerstrom.

16 Q What, if anything, did he say in regard to Mr. Bibby at

17 that time?

18 MR. APPEL· Wait a moment--we object to that as incompetent,

19 irrelevant and immaterial, and hearsay, and not binding

20 upon the defendant and no foundation laid.

24 duction?

21

22

23

TPE COUR T. Obj ect ion overr uled.

(Last qUeati0rlread by the repor ter. )

MR. FREDERICKS. Q This refers to the time of the intro-

A At the time of the introduction he just

introduced!~ Bibby and said he just happened to be coming

this \"lay on a business trip and he is wi th me here,
25

26



1530

1 got nothing to do with the case, he don't know anything

2 about the case. That is about all he said at the time of

3 the introduction.

4 Q And did he say anything la ter about Mr. Bibby?

5 MR. APPEL. We object upon the ground it is incompetent,

6 irrelevant and immaterial.

7 MR. FREDERICKS. State--exc~se me.

8 THE COURT. Go .ahead with your objection.

9 MR. APPEL. On tre ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and

10 immaterial and no foundation laid, it is hearsay, not

11 binding upon the def_endan t.

12 THE COURT. overruled.

13 MR. APPEL. We except.

14 (~ast question read by the reporter.)

15 A Why, he did not, that 1 recall, except that he said he

16 would leave the money wi th him, and he would go onahead,

17 because he had verypressing business, and 1 told him--he

18 said, "1'(ell", he says, "you and Mr. Bibby can get a drawing

19 room toge.ther and go on the Limi ted." 1 said, "NO, 1

20 r ather go by myself, he can take the train following me or

21 he can take the train ahead of me if he wants," so he said,

22 "Well," he said, "Mr. Bibby has got pressing business, of

23 course he will have to stay here to give youthe money and

24 he cannot be delayed and take the next train the following

25 day." He said, "Of course, you wouldn't mind traveling wit

26 him, 1 have traveled With worse than he is~ and laughed
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1 about it. So 1 told him, "Well, 1 guess it wouldn't be

2 any objection, but 1 want to get my own ticket and have a

3 berth by myself", and that was about all.

4 MEl • FREDERICKS. Q After Mr. Hammerstrom had left you and

5 you didn't see him any mor e--that is, youdicmnt t see him

6 any more in Albuquerque, did you see Mr. Bibby? A Saw

7 him the following --saw him Monday night.

8 Q And what was s aid and done b3 tween youand Mr. Bibby at

9 that time?

10 MR • APPEL. Wai t a moment -_we obj ect upon the ground that

11 it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial and hearsay,

12 has nothing to do with this case, no foundation laid, in­

13 competent for any purpose Whatsoever.

14 THE COUR T. overruled 0

15 MR • APPEL· We take an exception.
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Al-I1 ~I went up and saw Mr Bibby and told him I guessed I would

2 80, and so he said, "Well, It he says, TIl am glad you decided IT

3 "You v;ill find you have done the right thing IT
• So he gave

4 I me the money there, he gaveme the $100 for expenses, and

5 gave me the fare so tha.t I could buy my O\'m ticket and my

6 cvm berth.

7 Q How much? A $145, he gave me altogether. I think

8 the ticket amounted to something like ~44.l5, including the.

9 berth. So he s.aid, "I have made a reservation for two perth,

10 and you can have the lower or the top, it doesn't matter",

11 and. I said, ITT would rather make my ovrn reservation", so

12 I went do~n and cancelled his reservation and. got my own

13 ticket and berth, and he got one in the next car. So that

14 night, why, we left on the Santa Fe Limited for Chicago.

15 Q

16 A

17 Q

Well, what was the date of that you left, now?

It was September 19, 1911.

State whether or not you went right through on the

18 Chicago Limited to Chicago? A Yes sir.

19 Q Sta.te whetter or not !lTr Bibby remained in the same

20 train with you? A Yes sir.

1.1R AFI'2L: Just a mOr:lcnt. I object to any conversation

Well, in the meantime, before we got to Chicago, I had

Now, when you got to Chica.go where did you go?Q

Ioired a friend of mine to meet me at the Qepot -- one of the

clerks at the Ijetropole Hotel there, and he met me; and so

I told lllr Bibby I v:anted to be vd th him a vihile
24

125

26 I

I

21

22

23



1 between the 'witness and Mr :Bihby at

· ·i5~
Chicago or anywhere I

2 else, upon the ground that they are incompetent, irrelevant

3 and immaterial, hearsay, not binding upon this defendant,

4 particularly conversations betv.een the witness and his

5 friend.

6 MR FTIEEmICKS: He has not related any yet.

7 MR APFEL: On this theory --

8 lliffi B~EPERICKS: I will ask the questions so the matters can

9 I be ruled on when they come up. He has not told any conver-

10 sation.

11 THE COURT: The witness has not finished the answer. The

12 objection is overruled, and the reporter will read the

"-- .
I
I
!

by "he..!.I don't know who he means

Who do you mean by "he"?

It is what the witness wanted or did not want,

Strike it out.

Pardon me.

So Mr Bibby --

Ho.

:By Mr Fredericks:

COUET:

ROG:mS:

EOGERS:

22 THE

23
1 Q

24 lin
25 I A

I
26 ! MR

I
i
I

13 answer as far as it has gone.

14 I (Last anSVier read)
I
I

15 I THE COURT: Have you finished J-Tour answer?
i
I

16 I A
I

17 1 THE COlmT: Go ahead and finish it.

18 'I A So I wanted to see if he wo nld leave me go by myself,

19 ' and so he said he Viould rather have
I

i \
20 jl.1R paGERS: I move to\strike that out, "I wanted to see

21 ~JR FREDERICKS: I think that is material.

I



1. even in the most wide construction

153~
possible by the rules

2 of hearsay evidence --

3 THE COURT: Hot what he wanted, but what he said.

4 MR nOGETIS: He said "I wanted to see" something.

5 THE COURT: Do I understand you to say that is what you

6 told?

7 A No sir.

8 TilE COURT: Well, then, strike it out.

9 MR. F:lEDERICKS: Ho. The Vii tness said 11 I wanted to see

--10 whether he would let me go by myself" •

11 ~~ ROGERS: Now, that is --

12 I MR FREDERICK3: Now, it seems to me if this witness had a

13 fear and was getting a fear, that that fact, of that fear

14 THE COURT: If your theory is correct, Captain Fredericks,

15 I ask questions that will bring them out so that counsel can

16 ! get a proper objection, and. we will get a square ruling on
I

17 it one way or the other.

18 MR :I;7EDERICKS: All right. I see.

19 I Q Well, When you got to Chicago, where did you go?

20 I_A__I_went .to the Morrison Hotel.

21 'I Q Did anyone go with you? A Except my friend.

22 Q your-friond. That friend v:as not l1r Bibby? AlTo,

23fmr-L~~~~;d is his n.",o.

24 Q Nov;, how long did you remain at the r:Iorrison Hotel?
I ~

25 i A -~Remained there two days, or a day and a hal f.

26~ Then where did you go? A Then I returned to 10s

I



1

,j
Angeles.

2 Q Now" who selected that hotel for you, the Morrison

3 Hotel? A I did, myself.

4 I !lIR APPEL: Wai t a moment -- .

5 TIrE COURT: Proceed. There is no ob jection.

6 Mil ROGERS: We cannot make an ob jection after the answer.

7 1m FTIE~ERICKS: Do you want the answer stricken out?

8 1m APfEL: The answerS come so quickly, because the answers

9 arc so leading, they are improper questions. The witness is

10 not

11 I Thffi FORTI: We consent to strike out the question and the

12 I answer.

13 I MR :rm.EDETIICKS: Ho, let us drive on.
I

14 I TIm COl,1TIT: Go right on.

151 Q By~r Fre9-ericks: When diDou see Mr Hammerstrom in

161-Ch~:::s_0? ~__ I met him about 1 ~clock in lir Darrow's

17 I-Office -- I suppose it was rJ:r Darrow' s office~

181 Q G-nu--o-'cl-6ck of ",hatday?-- -i I guess it -~~s the 21st

19 day of September.

20 Q Row did you come to go up to Mr Darrow's office?

21 Io1R APPEL: That is objected to as incoIDl1e tent, irrelevant

22 and immaterial, hearsay, not binding upon the defendant,

and calling for a conclusion of the witness.232
A.~-:I24 !.:R F?EDERICKS: It may be, a.nd I withdrav: it.

I

25 I 1m AI'PEL: TIo founda.tion has been laid.

2G I Th~ COU?~', It h b 'thdI.~ ~.. as een~'· rawn.
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1 Q By !lTr Fredericks: TIid you have a conversation v;i th

2 Mr Hammerstrom, either over the telephone or otherwise,

3 before you went up to Mr Darrow's office? A ITo Sir,

Did you with Mr Bibby?

4 'I d.id not.

51Q A Yes sir.

6 Q Where was that conversation?

7 MR Al~PEL: Wei t a moment. We object to that upon the

8 ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial; hearsay,

9 no foundation laid, it is irrelevant to any issue in this

10 case, not binding upon the defendant.

11 T:HE COUTIT: Objection overruled.

12 I'M"D
....\ll"\.

13 A

APPEL: We except •

Well, before we 1 eft Albuquerque, Er Hammerstrom gave

141me -- had me take dO\m l.1r Darrow's office number, I think

15 i it was hi s numller -- I go tit in my memorandum book, and he

16 said, "Now, we will rely upon you to report there' as soon

17 as you get to Chicago, and I:r Bibby will be wi th ;)70U and you

181 go right on up there", and \~hen we arrived l:!r Bibby vmnted

19 me to go on up there, but as I stated before, I called for

20 t}lis friend of mine first, and I told him I would. go up as

21 soon as I got do~n to the hotel and got located. He toJd me

22 just Where it \,,;as. Ee says, "Coille up there 8S soon as :l0U.

23 can, because we will be waiting up there for you." So I

24 got up there, I think it \vaS about 1 0' clock, ana.. I met !~r

25 I Hammerstrom there, and -- that is t !J:r Higgins, at

2G I and I1r Bibby and l\lr Uockles.

I



1 Q A Yes.

In Darrow's office.

2

3

Q

Q

Ed Hockles? A. Yes sir.

What was said and done at that

4 time between you and !!.r Hanrnerstrom and Ed 1Tockles and !.Tr

5 Bibby in Mr Darrow's office?

6 1m AIPEL: We object to that upon the ground t1:at it is

7 incompet.ent, ir:relevant anti imuate: iaJ.; c~illlin8 for a hearsa

8 statement; calling for acts and declarations of third partie

9 Inot in the presence of the defendant; no foundat ion laid, no

10 connection has been shovm between the defendant. and the

11 alleged parties to the conversation; and upon the further

12 ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial

13 to prove any other element in the case •

14 THE COu"RT: Ob j ect ion overrul eo..

15 i IiIR APr~L: Take an exception-.

16 IA ~ny, I went up there and the first thing Mr Higgins

17 told me, he says Mr Hammerstrom -- he says, "How, my name

18 Is not Hi 8gins"; he says, "I want to set you right on that.

19 IMy n8m e is Hammerstrom, and. I am Mr Darrov,-' s brother-in-law. II

20 ISo he says, "I v;a.nt you to understand that before iye go any

21 fUrther so you will know who I am. I v:ant you to feel I am

22 Inot d~ceiving y~u any more. lI So, they kind of started a

231 conversation again and he said, lIlTow, -- 1I he in troduced me

241 to Tilr Hockles, and. he says 1!Mr Hockles will have charge of
I

25 I you while you are in Chicago", and he started to ask
I

2G ! again as to v;hether I had identified this r.Jan or not

I,



1 Q What man? A J B Brice -- and I told him, I

1S3Sl
said

2 "Hot positively". I said, "Almost as positively as I could",

3 and he says, "Well,"~~ Hanmerstrom said, "Dill he have a

4 mustache when you saw him? " Of course, I thought he meant

5 the time I last saw him, and I told him "Yes", anrl he

6 lallghed. "Well, we will have him grow one and. see if you

7 know him \-"hen you see him." So, just at that time the girl

8 came in with the little clipping in a paper about my

9 Igoing to Chicago, or something like that, and broke up the

10 conversation, and then a little later Mr H~erstrom told me,

11 he says, "Well, now, you are here", he says, "VIe want ;you

12 Ito take your time a feVl days, or if you want to go to work,
I

13 just come and tell Iir lIockles and come to work whenever you

14 want to; and if you do not want to, just go around and have

15 a good time." He says, "lroVl, how do you want to do with
I

16 I your expense money?" He says, "We \';ill 8ive you any amount

17 you want in advance if you VI ant it", and he says, "You can

18 1 come up either every I.Tond~ morning or any day you want to

191 get your expense money". I says, "Well, I just as well get

2 it at the end of the week."o He sa~Ts, "We would rather have

21 you take it now, to show you VIe are all right we will give

you a Vleek in ad"Vance" • So he asked Mr Bibby Of' he had any22 1._

23 more money left from his trip, and he did; and he gave me

24 ~30 out of that;and so then l1r Hammerstrom took rre dO\\n to

25ff~n~!_TvTayor ~9." 0 ffi_<{.~~~--~~~·~~~·~-~~~~~~£!~~~~;~· :~;~~~r~--m.:_~
261was I1r Darro\~~ s brothe~-~~~.l.~v;,~.-Hamrnerstro::.,,\:~as.

I
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So, then we went back up to the 0 ffice and we had a private

conversation aeain, and ]lr Hammerstrom said: "now, I am

eoing back to IJosAngeles tomorrow", and he says, "1 w~nt

you to give me a little statement to llr Darrow showing that

I brought you here and that you are going to be with us,

and I want you to Write a little statement to that effect. "

So, he said "You won't object to that, will you?" So, I

says, "Uo, I guess not." So I left that afternoon, and.

that was the last I Saw of him.

Q Did you ever give him such a statement?

never did.

THE COURT: 12 o'clock; adjournment time.

(Jury admonished) Court wil~ now adjourn until 2 o'clock

this afternoon.
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